
BELGRADE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

COUNCIL CHAMBERS

January 21, 2014
7: 00 P.M.

Mayor Russell C. Nelson called the meeting to order. Mayor and Council
Members present were:  Russell C. Nelson, Brad Cooper, Anne Koentopp, Ken Smith,
Kristine Menicucci, John Youngberg, Mark Criner. Others in attendance were Acting
City Manager E. J. Clark, City Attorney Rick Ramler, and Karla Sutter.

APPROVE THE COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES FROM NOVEMBER 4,

and 18, 2013— Council Member Youngberg motioned to approve the minutes of the
November 4, and 18, 2013 Council Meetings.

Council Member Criner seconded the motion.

All voted aye, motion carried unanimously

PUBLIC FORUM

Karla Sutter stated she has been in Belgrade for 20 years.  She is a Panther mom

through and through and her children are all grown up now. They played baseball,
football, and her daughter was a cheerleader.  I am here is because about six months ago

people from our church got together and decided that we need to give back to the City
and give our kids something to do. We formed a committee.  We started forming a non-
profit but we found the Belgrade Youth Forum had the same missions and goals, which is

to reduce crime, reduce teen pregnancy, reduce drug use and reduce domestic violence.
We actually met with the Belgrade Youth Forum last week and realized that almost all of
our goals are the same. We are now merging with the Belgrade Youth Forum and about
20 people on the committee from our church. We would like to have community wide
involvement. We wanted to give the Council some information.

We are actually in negotiations for property for a community center.  I have
spoken with City Planner Karp a few times.  If we were to build a community center how
big would it be. How would it affect Belgrade? Where would it be and what does it look

like. We have been on a few phone conversations and there were only about four
possible places we could put a three or four acre community center in Belgrade.  We tried
negotiations with Town Pump, but they were not interested.  I happen to know the owners
of Corbond.  We are in negotiations to use some of that land that is behind the granary to
build a community center.  I have spoken with City Planner Karp and he is checking on
zoning.

Has anyone been to the Joan Kroc Foundation Community Centers? They are
amazing.  There is so much to do.  There are 48 Kroc Centers in the country and their
goal was to reduce drug use, reduce domestic violence, reduce teen pregnancy, and reduce
crime. Within ten years, their statistics were phenomenal. They are doing that. They are
engaging the kids.  I have four kids.  One of my children got into trouble and into drugs
and many bad things.  He is doing better now.  We had a conversation to find out what

1



happened, why.  He said that there is nothing for anyone to do in Belgrade.  If you under
16 and you do not have a car, you are stuck doing nothing unless you happen to be good
enough to make one of the sports teams for the school.

We are having a fundraiser on March 26, 2014 at Belgrade High School.  We are
working with the high school with the Belgrade Youth Forum.  Our intention is not to
compete with any businesses already here. One advantage of a community center is that
it will provide employment for the local community and opportunity for community
volunteers. We are doing this so we can all be on the same page and give our kids and
families something positive to do which will bring commerce, which will bring more
people. There are people who travel up to an hour to go to the Kroc center in Coeur
d' Alene for swimming. There is a lot of commerce that comes with it. When we have a
basketball tournament or volleyball tournament those people can go the Kroc center and

swim, do archery, play basketball, indoor volleyball or other activities. There are all
kinds of different things.

The Belgrade Youth Forum was actually created to build a skate park. An
outdoor skate park can breed more problems. Therefore, we need an indoor skate park so

that it can be supervised. We asked the local kids what they wanted and we heard room
for cheerleading practice, dance floors, an indoor climbing wall, a youth room, snack
bars, some kids want a recording studio, and of course the skate park.

There is a huge problem in our city the 11 to 15- year-old children have nothing to
do. The parents think that they are old enough to stay home alone. We need after school
programs, we need clubs, we need things that will engage these children and enrich their

lives so that they are not going to go and get high.  I am talking about a million-dollar
complex. We want it to last for 50 or more years.  We want it to be a heritage that we can

hand down to this community. I really do not know my part yet.  We are just in the baby
stages.  I have just met with the Belgrade Youth Forum and Michele Snowberger and all

ofthe people on that committee. We just wanted to give the City and the Council a heads
up. I do not know if we will eventually need to ask for approval I have no idea what that
looks like but we definitely want this to be something where we are all on the same page.
We all want our kids to have positive things to do and we are ready to do that. That is
what I wanted to share with you.

Council Member Menicucci asked where the funding would come from.

Ms. Sutter stated that the Belgrade Youth Forum qualified for a grant already.
There is a lot ofmoney in this community.  In working with the pregnancy center, we
raised $350,000 a year to help pregnant moms.  I am pretty sure, we can raise that here.
When the community center went into Spokane, a requirement of the grant was to have at
least 1, 200 signatures in three months of people who want to sponsor with you.  That is

20.00 a month or$ 75. 00 a month and a promise to pay it for three years. The first year
is a donation because we do not have a building yet. The second year payment would
actually become a membership fee. The Spokane Center had $ 1, 200 signatures and

promised partners within three weeks.  We have been talking with different churches and
talking to different people.  So far, I have not gotten any negative feedback.  Everyone
wants something for our kids to do so it is time we take back our City.

2



Council Member Cooper stated you know that they are going to build a skate
park.

Ms. Sutter stated that yes they are going to continue to build a skate park we just
do not know if it will be an indoor or outdoor complex.

Council Member Cooper asked could we have two skate parks.

Ms. Sutter explained that we could probably have two skate parks because they
already have the land allocated and that was started before we merged. I know that the
skate park in Bozeman is where many kids to do drugs, so I do not think that Belgrade
really wants that. When I swung the idea of the skate park being indoor where we can
bring in ramps and maybe take them out and have it be a hockey rink and then bring them
back in at different times and have it all be supervised. I do not want a place where the

kids can get more drugs. We are in negotiations of what we are going to do with that
right now.

Council Member Criner asked if there is any discussion on how to get all the kids
from River Rock to a community center in Belgrade.

Ms. Sutter stated that could be arranged with the bus garage. Perhaps the kids

would not go home after school they could stay at the community center and then their
parents could pick them up at 5: 30 or 6: 00 PM.

Council Member Smith asked if Ms. Sutter would provide updates to the Council

from time to time.

Ms. Sutter stated she would keep the Council informed and once we merge, get all
of the details of all of that figured out.  We will come back and share with you what we

are doing. The owner of the land is either going to sell, lease or partner with us. He has
been trying to figure out what he was going to do that that land for a long time.  The first
step is acquiring the land and making sure that it set up with the City water and sewer
system.

Mayor Nelson called three times for any further comment during the public
forum. Hearing none, the public forum was closed.

REPORTS

Mayor Nelson reports that he had attended Boy Scout meeting last night to help
with a badge on citizenship.  I spoke on citizenship to a dozen young boy scouts.

City Attorney Ramler had nothing to report.

Acting City Manager Clark reported that he met with the Senior Center and the
paperwork has been filed for the land transfer. City Manager Designate Mr. Barkley was
here a few weeks ago and met with some of the staff.  I believe he is coming back on

3



January 23, 2013 to meet with the rest of the department heads and staff.  I told him when
he had time we would give him a tour of the City.

DISCUSSION

MUNI REVIEW RESOLUTION 2014- 1 — Acting City Manager Clark stated
this is a ten-year agreement and the statute is attached. City Attorney Ramler wrote up
the resolution and we had to come up with a budget by statute so we can get it on the
ballot. The citizens will vote whether or not they want a study. We have to have a
budget if there is a study.  Last time the budget was $2, 500 we have increased it to $ 3, 500
this time.

City Attorney Ramler stated this is if the voters decided to do a study then it
would be for the cost of the commission.

Council Member Cooper stated people have to vote before we have the

commission.

Council Member Youngberg stated that goes in the primary ballot.

Acting City Manager Clark stated that the budget is for if they vote for the study.
We have the money set aside for the study. We have to do this every ten years.

City Attorney Ramler stated we can do a specific amount of money for the study
budget or we can do a number of mills. You have to do one of the two.

Mayor Nelson stated is it on the government or is it on the form of government.

City Attorney Ramler stated it is on the form of government.  That is the language
they recommended but we can change it.

Mayor Nelson stated that it sounds better to submit recommendations on the form

of government.

City Attorney Ramler stated the other thing is it needs to be at least three
members.  It can be more members it needs to be an odd number.

Council Member Menicucci stated that five would be good for a committee.

Council Member Youngberg motioned to approve the Muni Review Resolution
2014- 1 with amendments of changes to language" on the form of government" and

change the committee size to five.

Council Member Menicucci seconded the motion

All voted aye, motion carried unanimously

4



CONSENT AGENDA

REPURCHASE AGREEMENT—Acting City Manager Clark stated this is
something we do every year.  I have talked with Finance Director Wernikowski.  We have
talked with people about reinvesting some of the monies.  I told her before we made a
decision or brought it to the Council we should wait until Mr. Barkley the new City
Manager starts to go over that with him, but we have to do the repurchase agreement

before Mr. Barkley starts. We can still adjust monies later if we need to, but Finance
Director Wernikowski needed this done right away.

Council Member Cooper asked what two accounts these were.

Acting City Manager Clark stated he did not know.  Finance Director
Wernikowski did go over the accounts but I did not gather the information.

Council Member Cooper stated it would be nice to know which is which. You do

not want to take a bunch of money out of one of them.

Acting City Manager Clark stated we are just leaving them where they are
currently, until Mr. Barkley comes and he could make recommendations. We are staying
status quo with this. We are not changing anything right now.

Mayor Nelson stated that they are pledging these securities or investments to
cover the balance of the City' s account at the bank correct. Often times the bank pays a
token of interest on a Repurchase Agreement. I do not see that mentioned on this sheet.

Do you know if that applies in this case?

Acting City Manager Clark stated he did not know.

Council Member Cooper stated he did not know if they ever had.

Mayor Nelson stated that every five to ten years the City of Bozeman and the
County take their accounts out to bid to the local banks and see who can come up with the
best deal for them. To my knowledge that has never been in the City of Belgrade and I do
not know ifwe can do that or if we choose to do that.

Acting City Manager Clark stated that we discussed that at a prior meeting.
Finance Director Wernikowski has been researching that.  I stalled her in bringing it to
the Council until Mr. Barkley got here.  I did not think that a couple of months would kill
us.

Council Member Cooper stated he thought that there was a resolution that we

have to bank at Valley Bank.

Council Member Koentopp asked if everything is in Valley Bank.

Acting City Manager Clark stated that some of the investments could be going
out.  Council Member Youngberg had brought up the State Investment Pool and we have

5



had some other financial people contact us that are interested in making offers too.  It
could get competitive for our benefit.

Council Member Cooper stated that he thought there was much research to be
done.

Mayor Nelson asked is the City locked into this agreement for a certain time.

Acting City Manager Clark stated as I understand it no, but Finance Director
Wernikowski could not come to the meeting tonight. As I understand it we can readjust
this and still move the monies ifwe needed to later.

Council Member Youngberg stated I am curious because it goes from 10- 1- 13 to
12- 31- 13. This is dated January 10, 2013.

Mayor Nelson stated that it looks as this report is produced on a quarterly basis.
This might be fourth quarter of 2013. We should see one the first quarter of 2014.

Council Member Cooper stated they usually have the form signed before they
bring it to the Council.

Acting City Manager Clark stated he did not know. This is the first Repurchase
Agreement that he has seen.

Council Member Cooper stated that the Repurchase Agreement is usually signed
before it is presented to the Council.

Acting City Manager Clark stated he had asked Finance Director Wernikowski if
the numbers were correct. Finance Director Wernikowski told him that the numbers were

correct.

Mayor Nelson stated that there are two different accounts listed on the report the
balance of one is $ 7, 500,000,000 as of 12/ 31/ 13. There are different account numbers do

we have more than one account there.

Council Member Cooper stated yes, there are several accounts.

Mayor Nelson asked in December do we have $ 14, 000,000,000 or

7, 500,000,000.  If it is true that we have $ 14, 000,000,000 and the agreement is that we

are supposed to be pledged then we are under-pledged.  They show different account
numbers that is why I ask that question.

Council Member Youngberg stated that part of this is the sweep they do every day
of accounts. They sweep all of the money out of all of the accounts that was put into the
bank.  When your funds are in the interest bearing investment products your swept funds
will not be treated as deposits.  You will be considered a secured creditor according to the
FDIC guidelines.  I think that one of these accounts is secured deposits and the other is
swept funds.

6



Mayor Nelson stated I think that you are right Council Member Youngberg. The
different account numbers threw me.

Acting City Manager Clark stated he could call Finance Director Wernikowski.

Finance Director Phyllis Wernikowski was called on the phone.

Council Member Youngberg stated I think that the question is we have two
account numbers does that mean we have $ 14,000,000,000 in the bank or do we have

7,500,000,000.

Finance Director Wernikowski stated the City has $ 7,500,000,000 in the bank.

Council Member Youngberg asked if the other numbers on the report an average
of the swept funds.

Finance Director Wernikowski they are showing that we have $ 7, 500,000,000 in
the bank and they have backed it up with the fact that they have $9,000,000,000 worth of
securities backing up the $ 7, 500,000,000.  For example if Valley Bank ever went under
there are federal securities backing them up.

Mayor Nelson asked why there are two account numbers.

Finance Director Wernikowski one account number is the checking account and
the repurchase account has a different account number. Every month we get two
statements one is the regular checking account statement and the one that shows the
repurchase account.

Council Member Youngberg stated so the monthly average balance would be the
checking account.

Finance Director Wernikowski stated that roughly it has been around
6,000,000,000 to $7, 500,000,000 for the past year.

Acting City Manager Clark asked Finance Director Wernikowski if the
Repurchase Agreement is usually signed before it is sent to the City.

Finance Director Wernikowski stated they normally send it over for us to say we
are good and then we sign it and then they send it back to us signed.  They usually email
the report.

Council Member Menicucci asked about the commitment we make by signing this
ifwe want to reinvest does that tie up the money.

Finance Director Wernikowski stated that this does not lock us in.

7



Council Member Youngberg stated that this just pledges the security for that
amount of money.

Finance Director Wernikowski stated it is just showing what we have and what is
there.

Mayor Nelson asked if this is done on a quarterly basis and this is for the fourth
quarter of 2013.

Finance Director Wernikowski stated yes it is done on a quarterly basis and this is
for the fourth quarter of 2013.

Council Member Youngberg made a motion to authorize Acting City Manager
Clark to enter into a Repurchase Agreement for the fourth quarter of 2013.

Council Member Koentopp seconded the motion.

All voted aye, motion carried unanimously

APPROVE WARRANTS PAYABLE DECEMBER 2013— Council Member

Cooper asked about the expense on the water of$269,000.

Mayor Nelson stated that the title of that is U.S. Bank Trust Lock Box.

Council Member Cooper asked if this was part of the reorganization done earlier
in the year.

Acting City Manager Clark stated all we did with the reorganization was to
restructure the loan interest percentage.

Council Member Cooper stated it looks like this lock box pays all the loans. I

have never seen it before so I do not know why it is listed this way.

Mayor Nelson asked if the City receives USA Today newspaper.

Acting City Manager Clark stated that the Library carries the newspaper.

Council Member Cooper asked why there are stars behind some of the line items,
does that make them deficient funds.  I do not know why when we work on machinery it
would be deficient funds. That is part of maintenance, for instance why would the
Kubota Tractor be an over expenditure item.

Acting City Manager Clark stated it could be as simple as a line item.  Such as,
Public Works Director Klotz budgeted for a specific amount in the park and then it was

over spent in that area, but he can pull it out of another account to make up for that area.
We can line item adjust some things.

8



Council Member Cooper stated you would think that any work you do on
machinery would all the same line item.

Acting City Manager Clark stated not necessarily.  For Public Works, the money
could come out of streets, water, or sewer depending on where that machine is being
used.  If Public Works buys backhoe tires that comes out of three different areas because

that backhoe is used in water, sewer, and streets.  In one area he may be over, but in
another he has a little extra and can move it around, but he tries to do that in percentages

on what that is used for and things.

Council Member Menicucci stated she had talked with Finance Director

Wernikowski about six weeks ago and what she had not swept out the software

automatically put an asterisk.

Council Member Smith stated when the City contracts for services, the contract
ends, and the wants to continue that service is that put out to bid.

Acting City Manager Clark stated it depends on the price of what that service
would cost. We have a limit of$80,000 that we are required to go to bid. Otherwise we

can do best service that we can get. Usually we try to keep it as local as we can.

Council Member Koentopp motioned to approve the December 2013 Warrants
Payable.

Council Member Smith seconded the motion

All voted aye, motion carried unanimously

FOR YOUR INFORMATION

Council Member Youngberg had nothing.
Council Member Criner had nothing.
Council Member Menicucci had nothing.
Council Member Smith had nothing.
Council Member Koentopp had nothing.

Council Member Cooper stated that one thing he wanted to discuss is that the
roundabouts they are doing by the airport. I have had people question me as to what the
handicap access across it will be since there will be a trail incorporated.  I think we need
to look and make sure we have handicap access across those roundabouts.

Acting City Manager Clark stated there are sidewalks on each side.

Council Member Cooper stated he spoke to Scott Bell and there is no plan yet

where there will be handicap access across the roundabout or how would you provide for
that.

9



Acting City Manager Clark stated he would look into it, but I am not worried
about it because the State is approving it and the State would not construct it without the
ADA approvals.  I will check to see that it is in the plans.

Council Member Koentopp asked what they were going to do with the
foundations that border the west end of the pit.

Acting City Manager Clark stated that through the money on the project the empty
lots and the foundations were purchased by the County. Once the retaining wall is put in
and the onramps are paved, we are going to resale that property then that money will go
back into the project.  It will be within the restrictions of the setbacks. You will actually
be able to build on those foundations.

Mayor Nelson stated that the workshops would worthwhile for the new members

of the Council to attend the workshops.

Council Member Cooper stated that when the new City Manager Ted Barkley
arrives, do you have a list of what is happening and you talked with him and brought him
up to speed.

Acting City Manager Clark stated we spent three hours going over stuff. When
Mr. Barkley does start, I have it set out for Citywide and then each department ofwhat is
going on and issues we have had.

Mayor Nelson stated that one thing Mr. Barkley is going to change that he
learning in talking with staff is that he wants to put in weekly or monthly staff meetings
for all of the staff.

Acting City Manager Clark stated mostly Mr. Barkley' s visit was a fact finding
thing.  We went over the 1- 90 project and the bypass roads and the growth and monies,
but nothing real in depth.

Planning Board Meeting January 27, 2014 at 7: 00 PM— Council Member

Koentopp
Water Quality District Meeting Feb 6, 2014 at 8: 15 AM—Council Member Smith

Fire Board Meeting February 11, 2014 at 6: 00 PM—Mayor Nelson

Park Board Meeting February 11, 2014 at 7: 00 PM— Council Member Youngberg
MMIA and LGC Municipal Risk Workshops dates and information in packet

10



Acting City Manager Clark stated that yes Opticom/Pauley Construction is shut down
for the winter.  They have some of the same problems as any other utilities.  They cannot
patch anything and they cannot pack it once it starts freezing.

Council Member Cooper stated so some of the people who have holes in their yard

will have to live with that until spring.

Acting City Manager Clark stated that Opticom/ Pauley Construction told him they
would fill the holes in. You have different crews doing different things some will come
through and do the boring; another will pull the fiber optic lines, etc.

Council Member Cooper stated he has heard from citizens that it is up to a month
before the crew returns to finish.

Council Member Criner had no new information

Council Member Menicucci had no new information.

Council Member Smith had no new information.

Council Member Koentopp asked if the work on the I-90 interchange is ahead of
schedule.

Council Member Youngberg stated that the work on the 1- 90 interchange is three and a
half months ahead of schedule.

Council Member Cooper had no new information.

Mayor Nelson stated he had received invitation for the Council from Sanderson

Stewart to attend a holiday party on Tuesday December 10, 2013.

ADJOURN

Council Member Criner moved to adjourn the meeting.

Meeting adjourned at 8: 25 PM

Anne Koentopp, Deputy Mayor

f 4
hristin Cro dministrative Secretary

7


